
NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 

Meeting Date:  August 8, 2011 
 
The Board of Directors of Novato Sanitary District will hold a regular 
meeting at 6:30 p.m., Monday, August 8, 2011, at the District Offices, 500 
Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection in the 
District Office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, during normal business hours. They 
are also available on the District’s website:  www.novatosan.com. 
 

AGENDA 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

2. AGENDA APPROVAL: 

3. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please observe a three-minute time limit): 
 

 This item is to allow anyone present to comment on any subject not on the 
agenda, or to request consideration to place an item on a future agenda.  
Individuals will be limited to a three-minute presentation.  No action will be 
taken by the Board at this time as a result of any public comments made. 

4. REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 

a. Consider approval of minutes of the July 25, 2011 meeting. 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 

The Manager-Engineer has reviewed the following items. To her 
knowledge, there is no opposition to the action. The items can be acted on 
in one consolidated motion as recommended or may be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and separately considered at the request of any person. 

a. Approve expenditure of up to $125,000 to apply biosolids to the 
dedicated land disposal site and clean two sludge lagoons. 

b. Approve fund transfer from Capital Improvement Fund to the 
Operating Fund of $264,225.65. 

c. Approve regular disbursements. 

6. MARIN COUNTY COUNCIL OF MAYORS AND COUNCILMEMBERS 
ADHOC COMMITTEE ON PENSIONS AND OTHER POST 
EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS REFORM: 

a. Presentation of final report.  

 



AGENDA/Board of Directors 
Meeting Date:  August 8, 2011 
 

2 

7. FINANCE: 

a. Review of Draft Preliminary Official Statement and Notice of Sale for 
Certificate of Participation (COP). 

b. Consider approval of issuing a request for proposals for Trustee. 
c. Review of COP Sale Schedule. 
d. Presidential appointment of Ad hoc Finance Committee. 

8. STAFF REPORTS: 

a. Algebra Academy. 

9. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 

10. MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS: 

11. ADJOURN: 
 
Next resolution no. 3033  
 
Next meeting date:  Monday, August 22, 2011, 6:30 PM at the Novato 
Sanitary District office, 500 Davidson Street, Novato, CA 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District at (415) 892-
1694 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.  Notification prior to the meeting will 
enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure 
accessibility to this meeting. 
 
 



 

 

July 25, 2011 
 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Novato Sanitary District was held at 
6:30 p.m., Monday, July 25, 2011, at the District offices, 500 Davidson Street, Novato. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:  President William C. Long, Members Michael Di 
Giorgio, Jean Mariani, George C. Quesada and Dennis Welsh. 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Manager-Engineer-Secretary Beverly James, Deputy Manager-
Engineer Sandeep Karkal and Administrative Secretary Julie Swoboda.  
 
ALSO PRESENT: Brant Miller, Novato resident 
 Suzanne Crow, Novato resident 
 Jerry Peters, Novato resident 
 Jo Heffelfinger, Novato resident 
 Rick Holliday, San Rafael 
 Steve McCaffrey, Director of Governmental Affairs, Novato Disposal 
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
AGENDA APPROVAL:  On motion of Member Quesada, seconded by Member Mariani 
and carried unanimously, the agenda was approved. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
 
Steve McCaffrey, Director of Governmental Affairs, Novato Disposal, showed the Board 
their new proposed North Bay Corporation mascot, Curbie, which was designed after 
the food waste recycling program.  In addition, Mr. McCaffrey stated that the Novato 
Disposal entry won first place at the Novato Fourth of July parade. 
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES: 
 
- Consider approval of minutes of the July 11th, 2011 meeting. 
 
Member Quesada stated that the July 11th meeting was not a legal Board meeting 
because the meeting was not properly noticed due to an error on the July 11th agenda.  
He stated that the minutes should not be approved for this reason. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani and carried with the 
following vote, the minutes of the July 11th, 2011 meeting were approved as written.  
Ayes:  Di Giorgio, Long, Mariani, Welsh.  Noes:  Quesada 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: 
 



July 25, 2011 
Page 2 

 

The Manager reviewed a memo from District Counsel Kent Alm which addressed the 
question of whether or not the July 11th Board meeting violated the Brown Act.  The 
Manager read from the memo which stated that Counsel believed “the July 11 agenda 
as posted substantially complied with the Brown Act’s agenda requirements, that 
therefore the meeting did not violate the Brown Act, and that the actions taken at the 
meeting are not void.  Nevertheless, out of an abundance of caution it would be prudent 
for the District Board to simply ratify the actions that were taken at that meeting.”  The 
Manager stated that the consent calendar included ratification of the five items 
approved at the July 11th meeting. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani, and carried 
unanimously, the following Consent Calendar items were approved: 

a. Ratify approval of minutes of the June 27, 2011 meeting. 
b. Ratify approval of disbursements of the July 11, 2011 meeting. 
c. Ratify adoption of Ordinance No. 114 establishing sewer service charge 

rates. 
d. Ratify adoption of Resolution 3032 confirming sewer service charge report 

and electing to collect on tax rolls. 
e. Ratify approval of Stanley Caldwell for California Special District Association 

Director. 
f.       Approval of regular disbursements in the amount of $716,343.00, project 

account disbursements in the amount of $87,965.4, and payroll and payroll 
related disbursements in the amount of $237,253.51. 

 
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 
 
- Wastewater Operations Committee Report.  The Manager gave an overview of the 
Monthly Operations Report from June 2011. She discussed the treatment plant 
performance summary, noting that there were no NPDES permit exceedances in June.  
She noted that the District transitioned from Bay Discharge to Reclamation on June 1st, 
and then switched from Reclamation to Bay Discharge on June 14th.  She stated that 
the District received permission from the Regional Board to discharge to the bay until 
July 1, 2011 due to the high water levels in storage. 
 
The Manager discussed the Collection System Operations Report for June and noted 
that there were no stoppages for the month.  She gave an overview of the Reclamation 
facilities.    
 
- Odor control staff report.  John Bailey, Plant Manager, Veolia Water, discussed the 
odor control meters and devices the District is using to capture and identify fugitive 
odors in the plant and neighborhoods surrounding the treatment facility.   
 
President Long commented on the Wastewater Operations Committee monthly report 
and stated the report was of great value and very well done.  He suggested the report 



July 25, 2011 
Page 3 

 

be a topic of discussion/training at a future CASA meeting so other agencies could 
utilize our reporting methods. 
 
Member Quesada questioned if the ponds at the reclamation facility were left with some 
amount of standing water to ensure odors from the decaying solid matter did not 
escape.  The Manager stated that the District maintains a three foot depth of water at all 
times in the ponds. 
 
ANNUAL RECLAMATION FACILITIES IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 72804: 
 
- Consider approval of a proposal from Nute Engineering to prepare the design bid 
documents and permit applications for culvert repair.  The Deputy Manager-Engineer 
explained that staff has discovered several culverts throughout the Reclamation 
Facilities that have failed due to age and corrosion and need to be replaced.  He noted 
that the culverts are located in Site 2, Site 3 and Site 7.  The Deputy Manager-Engineer 
stated that Nute Engineering has proposed to complete the permitting process and 
prepare sketches for bidding purposes at a cost of $34,500.  He noted that the 
preliminary construction cost estimate is $190,000. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani and carried 
unanimously, the Board approved the proposal from Nute Engineering to prepare the 
design bid documents and permit applications for culvert repair at the Reclamation 
Facilities. 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE: 
 
- Consider approval of revised Purchasing Procedures.  The Manager noted that the 
Board last adopted Purchasing Procedures in August, 2004.  She reviewed with the 
Board the revised procedures as outlined on the document titled:  “Novato Sanitary 
District Purchasing Procedures, July 22, 2011”.  She stated that the revisions were 
formatted in blue ink and strike-out.   
 
Member Quesada discussed Item 2, Section C, which referred to quotes being obtained 
“preferably from three suppliers”.  After discussion, the Board modified Item 2, Section 
C to the following:  “Competitive quotes shall be obtained on new or unfamiliar items to 
insure relative cost and availability.”  The phrase “preferably from three suppliers” was 
deleted. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani and carried 
unanimously, the Board approved the Novato Sanitary District Purchasing Procedures, 
July 22, 2011, as revised and modified. 
 
-Consider authorization to establish a new account at Westamerica Bank for receipt of 
ARRA (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) funds for Recycled Water Project.  
The Manager noted that the US Bureau of Reclamation requires the District to open a 



July 25, 2011 
Page 4 

 

separate account for receipt of the ARRA funds received for the Recycled Water 
Project. 
 
On motion of Member Di Giorgio, seconded by Member Mariani and carried 
unanimously, the Board authorized the Manager to establish a new account at 
Westamerica Bank for receipt of ARRA funds for the Recycled Water Project. 
 
- Consider approval of Annual Statement of Investment Policy.  The Manager 
summarized for the Board the changes to the Statement of Investment Policy and 
reviewed the Policy in depth. 
 
On motion of Member Mariani, seconded by Member Di Giorgio, and carried 
unanimously, the Board adopted the Statement of Investment Policy for Novato Sanitary 
District which includes the revised California Government Code Section 53600. 
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
 - Presidential appointment of Committee members for 2011-12:  The President noted 
that the committee members were appointed at the July 11th Board meeting, but due to 
the question of legality of that meeting, in an abundance of caution, the Board would 
reaffirm their appointments. 
 
President Long appointed the following Standing Committee members: 
 

Joint City/District Solid Waste Committee: 
 George C. Quesada 
 Jean Mariani 
 William C. Long, Alternate 
 
Wastewater Operations Committee: 
 Michael  Di Giorgio 
 Dennis Welsh 
 George C. Quesada, Alternate 
 
New Facilities Committee: 
 William C. Long 
 Jean Mariani 
 Dennis Welsh, Alternate 

 
President Long appointed the following Regular Committee members: 
 

California Association of Sanitation Agencies: 
 William C. Long, Delegate 
 Michael Di Giorgio, Alternate 
 



July 25, 2011 
Page 5 

 

California Sanitation Risk Management Authority: 
 Beverly B. James, Delegate 
 William C. Long, Alternate 
 
North Bay Water Reuse Authority: 
 William C. Long, Delegate 
 Michael Di Giorgio, Alternate 
 
North Bay Watershed Association: 
 Michael Di Giorgio, Delegate 
 Beverly B. James, Alternate 
 

President Long made the following Ad Hoc Committee Assignments: 
 

Marin County Council of Mayors and Councilmembers Ad Hoc Committee on 
Pensions and OPEB: 

 
  William C. Long 
  Michael Di Giorgio 
 
 Audit Committee: 
 
  Dennis Welsh 
  Jean Mariani 
 
 Labor Negotiations Committee: 
 
  William C. Long 
  Michael Di Giorgio 
 
STAFF REPORTS: 
 
- North Bay Water Reuse Authority: The Manager gave an overview of the North Bay 
Water Reuse Authority (NBWRA) Technical Advisory Committee meeting which she 
attended on July 18th.  She noted that the Committee discussed Phase I and Phase II of 
the NBWRA projects.      
 
BOARD MEMBER REPORTS: 
 
- Marin County Council of Mayors and Councilmembers Adhoc Committee on Pensions 
and Other Post Employment Benefits Reform Final Report.  President Long, Adhoc 
Committee member, reported that Larry Chu, Committee Chairman, would be at the 
August 8th District Board meeting to discuss the Adhoc Committee’s Final Report in 
detail.  President Long discussed the Pensions Reform Final Report and suggested the 
District assess their pension liability in light of the current financial circumstances. 



July 25, 2011 
Page 6 

 

 
Member Di Giorgio, Adhoc Committee member, commented that the report was well 
done. He gave an overview of the report and discussed the District’s future pension 
liability. 
 
Member Mariani noted that she attended the Sanitary District’s Public Tour on July 16th.  
She commended the Deputy Manager-Engineer and John Bailey, Plant Manager, 
Veolia Water, for their efforts and commented that the tour was very good. 
 
Member Welsh commented that he wished Gail Meyers a speedy recovery. 
 
MANAGER’S ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
 
The Manager stated that the Novato Sanitary District will hold a public tour of the 
treatment facility on Saturday, August 13th at 10AM.   
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, President Long declared the 
meeting adjourned at 7:40 p.m.  
  
 
        Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 

Beverly B. James, Secretary 
 
 
Julie Swoboda, recording 



S:\Board Reports\2011\August\First Half\2011 Sludge Disposal Contract.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE: Reclamation Facility 
Biosolids Disposal 

MEETING DATE: August 8, 2011 
AGENDA ITEM NO.: 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider a proposal from Custom Tractor Services (CTS) to: (a) 
dispose of District biosolids into the District’s Dedicated Land Disposal Area at the Reclamation 
Facility, and (b) clean out sludge lagoons 1 & 2 on a time-and-materials basis to a maximum amount 
of $125,000; and authorize the Manager-Engineer to execute a contract for the same. 
SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
Under the terms of its discharge permit, the District is required to dispose of digested biosolids 
generated from its treatment facilities at its dedicated land disposal (DLD) site off of Highway 37, in 
accordance with Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 503. Options for final disposal 
historically have been either by spreading or by injection into the DLD in summer. 

For the past several years the District has contracted with Custom Tractor Service (CTS) of Petaluma 
to perform this work.  CTS has been performing this work satisfactorily for the Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District for the past several years as well, and they are the only contractor in this area that 
has the type of equipment to adequately perform this work.  CTS performed this work last season for 
the District for 0.034 cents per gallon. 

Staff requested and received a proposal from CTS to perform these services this year.  Under their 
proposal, CTS proposes to provide the biosolids disposal services for 0.034 cents per gallon plus a 
one-time setup fee of $2,500, the same as last year.  The setup fee will be waived if one million 
gallons are disposed this season.  Staff estimates that close to 1.75 million gallons will be disposed of 
and the amount of the work should not exceed $59,500.00. 

Also, biosolids typically accumulate and compact in the bottom of the sludge lagoons in a manner 
such that they cannot be completely removed by pumping, and thereby reduce the overall capacity of 
the lagoons.  Staff requested a proposal from CTS to excavate and spread these solids in the DLD 
using manure spreaders.  This work must be done immediately after a sludge lagoon is emptied in 
order to place it back into service.  CTS performed this work last year on Lagoons 3 & 4 for 
$61,000.00.  CTS estimates that it will cost around $31,000.00 per lagoon this year to clean out 
Lagoons 1 & 2, for a total of $62,000.00.  Work would be done on a time and materials basis upto the 
maximum proposed amount due to the unknown quantities to be removed.  Both work items would be 
funded from Account No. 63115 – Sludge Disposal. 

Staff recommends that the Board accept the CTS proposal, and authorize the Manager-Engineer to 
execute a contract with CTS for (a) a not-to-exceed amount of $60,000.00 for sludge injection and (b) 
a maximum amount of $62,000.00 for cleaning out the sludge lagoons. 

ALTERNATIVES: NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  This work is budgeted in the FY11-13 Preliminary Budget under 
Account No. 63115 - Sludge Disposal in an amount of $148,000.00. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 
 



























Date Num Name Credit

Aug 8, 11
8/8/2011 2195 California Diesel & Power 2,630.32
8/8/2011 2194 Bartle Wells Assoc, Inc 1,365.00

Aug 8, 11 3,995.32

Novato Sanitary District
08/05/11 Check Register

August 8, 2011

Page 1





Date Num Name Credit

Aug 5, 11
8/5/2011 3112 Di Giorgio, Michael 1,121.04
8/5/2011 1685 Long, William C 768.97
8/5/2011 3113 Mariani, Jean M 396.58
8/5/2011 3111 Welsh, Dennis J 296.57

Aug 5, 11 2,583.16

Novato Sanitary District
08/05/11 Check Register

August 5, 2011

Page 1



S:\Board Reports\2011\August\First Half\Finance.doc 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
TITLE:  Finance MEETING DATE: August 8, 2011 

AGENDA ITEM NO.: 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Manager-Engineer to issue a Request for 
Proposals for a Trustee for the Certificate of Participation. 

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION:   
On June 27th the Board authorized initiating the process to sell Certificates of Participation 
(COP) to finance the Recycled Water Treatment Facility and the balance of the Wastewater 
Treatment Plant Upgrade Project that was not financed by a SRF loan. Bartle Wells has been 
preparing a schedule for the sale of the Certificates of Participation a copy of which is 
attached to this memo. They are also preparing a Preliminary Official Statement (POS), which 
provides the required disclosures for the investors. 
Tom Gaffney and Catherine Tseng will present the draft POS to the Board at the meeting on 
Monday. There will be time for the Board to review it and provide comments before 
considering approval of the final POS at the meeting on August 22, 2011. No action will be 
taken on the POS at this meeting. 
The District will need to select a Trustee to hold the bond funds and track the payments. It is 
planned to do this through a competitive bid process. Bartle Wells will prepare the RFP 
pending board authorization to issue the RFP. 
It is generally advisable to have a board committee appointed to work with the Financial 
Consultant and Bond Counsel through the COP sale. Staff recommends that the President 
appoint an Adhoc Finance Committee. 
  

ALTERNATIVES: NA 

BUDGET INFORMATION:  The cost of the trustee will be included in the COP. 

DEPT.MGR.: MANAGER: 
 



 
   

 

 
 

NOVATO SANITARY DISTRICT 
COP Sale Schedule – DRAFT 7/29/11 
2011 Revenue Certificate of Participation                           
Planned Sale Date:  Wednesday, September 28, 2011       
 
Action  Date  Responsibility 
Select Financial Consultant/Bond Counsel  Jan 2006  NSD 
Authorization to Proceed  Jun. 27, 2011  NSD 
First draft POS circulated for review   Aug. 9, 2011   BWA 
First draft NOS circulated for review  Aug. 9, 2011   JH 
RFP for Trustee  Aug. 9, 2011  BWA / NSD 
Finalize POS for Board Packet   Aug. 22, 2011  BWA 
Finalize NOS for Board Packet  Aug. 22, 2011  JH / BWA 
Contact rating agency for meeting   Aug. 22, 2011  NSD / BWA  
Notify Bond Buyer to place on calendar  Aug. 22, 2011  BWA 
Select Trustee  Aug. 24, 2011  NSD /BWA 
Board call for sale of COPs  Sept. 12, 2011  NSD /BWA 
Rating agency meeting in SF (tentative)   Sept. 14, 2011  NSD/BWA/ S&P 
Finalize POS/NOS distributed  Sept. 15, 2011  BWA 
Receive bids on COPs, award to low bidder  Sept. 28, 2011  All 
Finalize OS  Oct. 5, 2011  BWA 
Prepare closing documents/pre‐closing  Oct. 17, 2011   NSD / JH  
Closing and receipt of funds; fund escrow  Oct. 18, 2011  NSD / JH 
 
Board of Directors’ Meeting Dates:  2nd and 4th Mondays of each month  
 

 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 1 2 3 4 5

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 13 14 15 16 17 18 19

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 20 21 22 23 24 25 26

25 26 27 28 29 30 1 30 31 27 28 29 30

 ‐  Board Mtgs  ‐  Sale Date

JUNE JULY AUGUST

SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER

 






	080811 agenda
	AGENDA

	07-25-11 minutes
	2011 Sludge Disposal Contract 5.a
	Capital Transfer 10-11 5.b
	operatingckregister080811 5.c
	operatingckregisterdetail 5.c.2
	projectckregister080811 5.c.3
	projectckregisterdetail 5.c.4
	boardckregister080511 5.c.5
	Finance 7.b
	Novato SD - COP Sale Schedule DRAFT 07.29.2011 7.b.2
	Algebra Academy 8.a



